
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENfAL PROTECfiON AGENCY 
Region6 

1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200 
Dallas, Texas 75202 - 2733 

MAR 2 7 2013 

Certified Mail- Return Receipt Requested# 7011 3500 0000 0360 3254 

Martha Brown, Environmental Health and Safety Manager 
Ennis Paint, Inc. (North Plant) 
115 Todd Court 
Thomasville, NC 27360 

RE: In the Matter of Ennis Paint, Inc. (North Plant) 
Docket No. EPCRA-06-2013-0507 

Dear Ms. Brown: 

Enclosed is the fully executed Complaint and Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) filed 
with the Regional hearing Clerk. From the effective date of the CAFO, Ennis Paint, Inc. (North 
Plant) has 30 days to make payment of the $10,334 civil penalty and 90 days to complete the 
Supplemental Environmental Project. Upon completion of the SEP, Ennis Paint has 2 weeks to 
submit the SEP Completion Report to EPA. These requirements are set forth in section IV 
beginning on page 5. The effective date is the date the CAFO is stamped in the top right corner of 
the document. 

If you have any questions, or concerns regarding this matter, please contact Stan Lancaster at 
214.665.8034. Your cooperation in the settlement of this case is most appreciated. 

Enclosure (I) 

Sincerely yours, 

Acting Director 
Multimedia Planning and 

Permitting Division 
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RESPONDENT 
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§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

The Director, Multimedia Planning and Permitting Division, United States 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 6 (Complainant), and Ennis Paint, Inc. 

(hereinafter "Ennis Paint" or ""Respondent") in the above-referenced proceeding, hereby agree 

to resolve this matter through the issuance of this Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO). 

I. PRELIMINARYSTATEMENT 

I. This proceeding for the assessment of civil penalties pursuant to Section 325(c) of the 

Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA), 42 U.S.C. § I I045(c), is 

simultaneously commenced and concluded by the issuance of this CAFO against the Respondent 

pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3). 

2. For the purposes ofthis proceeding, the Respondent admits the jurisdictional 

allegations herein; however, the Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual 

allegations contained in this CAFO. 

3. The Respondent explicitly waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to 

appeal the proposed Final Order set forth therein, and waives all defenses which have been raised 

or co~J.ld have been raised to the claims set forth in the CAFO. 
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4. Compliance with all the terms and conditions of this CAFO shall resolve only those 

violations which are set forth herein. 

5. The Respondent consents to the issuance of this CAFO, to the assessment and 

payment of the stated civil penalty in the amount and by the method set forth in this CAFO. 

6. The Respondent represents that it is duly authorized to execute this CAFO and that the 

party signing this CAFO on behalf of the Respondent is duly authorized to bind the Respondent 

to the terms and conditions of this CAFO. 

7. The Respondent agrees that the provisions of this CAFO shall be binding on its 

officers, directors, employees, agents, servants, authorized representatives, successors, and 

asstgns. 

8. The Respondent hereby certifies that as of the date of the execution of this CAFO, 

Ennis Paint (North Plant) has corrected the violations alleged in this CAFO and is now, to the 

best of its knowledge, in compliance with all applicable requirements of Section 313 of EPCRA, 

42 U.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. Part 372. 

II. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND 

9. Section 313 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.22 and 372.30 

require the owner or operator of a facility that: (a) has ten or more full-time employees; (b) that 

is an establishment with a primary Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) major group or 

industry code listed in 40 C.F.R. § 372.23(a), or a primary North American Industry 

Classification System (NAICS) subsector or industry code listed in 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.23(b) or 

(c); and (c) "manufactured, processed, or otherwise used" a toxic chemical listed under 

Subsection 313(c) ofEPCRA and 40 C.F.R. § 372.65, in excess of the threshold quantity 

established under Subsection 313(f) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § II 023(f), and 
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40 C.F.R. §§ 372.25, 372.27, or 372.28 during the calendar year, to complete and submit a toxic 

chemical release inventory Form R to the Administrator of EPA and to the State in which the 

subject facility is located by July I, for the preceding calendar year, for each toxic chemical 

known by the owner or operator to be "manufactured, processed, or otherwise used" in quantities 

exceeding the established threshold quantity during that preceding calendar year. 

10. According to Section 313(f) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(f), and 

40 C.F.R. § 372.25, the threshold amount for reporting under Section 313(b) ofEPCRA, 

42 U.S.C. § 11023(b), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30, is 25,000 pounds for any toxic chemical 

"manufactured or processed," and I 0,000 pounds for any toxic chemical "otherwise used" for the 

applicable calendar year. Alternative reporting thresholds are set forth in 

40 C.F.R. §§ 372.27 and 372.28. 

III. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

A. PRELIMINARY ALLEGATIONS 

II. The Respondent is a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas, 

and authorized to do business in the State of Texas. 

12. The Respondent is a "person" as defined by Section 329(7) of EPCRA, 

42 u.s.c. § 11049(7). 

13; The Respondent owns and operates the business at 2803 Old Highway 75 North, 

Ennis, Texas, 75119. 

14. Ennis Paint, Inc. (North Plant), identified in Paragraph 13, is a "facility", as that term 

is defined by Section 329(4) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.3. 

15. The Respondent's facility has ten (10) or more "full-time employees" that term is 

defined by 40 C.F.R. § 372.3. 
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16. The Respondent's facility is in NAICS subsector or industry code 325510, paint and 

coatings manufacturer. 

17. Chromium compounds, lead compounds, methanol, toluene and xylene are ''toxic 

chemicals" within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.3 and 372.65. 

18. During calendar year 2007 and 2009, the toxic chemicals in paragraph 17 were 

"manufactured, processed, or otherwise used" as those terms are defined by 40 C.F.R. § 372.3, at 

the Respondent's facility. 

19. On August 12,2010, an inspection was conducted by a duly authorized 

representative of EPA, Region 6, on the facility located at 2803 Old Highway 75 North, Ennis, 

Texas, 75119. 

B. VIOLATIONS 

Count 1-5- Failure to File Form Rs for Calendar Year 2007 

20. During calendar years 2007, the Respondent "processed" the "toxic chemicals" listed 

in paragraph 17, at the Respondent's facility, in excess of the applicable threshold quantities. 

21. The Respondent failed to file a Form R with EPA and the State of Texas for the 

"toxic chemicals" listed in paragraph 17 by July 1, 2008, for the 2007. 

22. Therefore, the Respondent violated Section 313(a) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), 

and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30 by failing to submit complete and accurate Form R for chromium 

compounds, lead compounds, methanol, toluene and xylene for the 2007 calendar year, to EPA 

and to the State of Texas by July 1, 2008. 
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Count 6- Failure to File Form R for Calendar Year 2009 

23. During calendar year 2009, the Respondent "processed" the xylene at the 

Respondent's facility, in excess of the applicable threshold quantities. 

24. The Respondent failed to timely file a Form R with EPA and the State of Texas for 

xylene by July I, 2010, for the 2009, calendar year (168 days late). 

25. Therefore, the Respondent violated Section 313(a) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), 

and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30 by failing to submit complete and accurate Form R for xylene for 

calendar year 2009 to EPA and to the State ofTexas by July I, 2010. 

IV. TERMS OF SETTLEMENT 

A. CIVIL PENALTY 

26. For the reasons set forth above, the Respondent has agreed to pay a civil penalty 

which has been determined in accordance with Section 325(c) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), 

which a~thorizes EPA to assess a civil penalty of up to Thirty-Seven Thousand Five Hundred 

Dollars ($37 ,500) per day for each violation of EPCRA. 1 Upon consideration of the entire 

record herein, including the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, which are hereby adopted 

and made a part hereof, and upon consideration of the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity 

of the alleged violations, and with respect to the Respondent, ability to pay, history of prior 

EPCRA Section 313 violations, the degree of culpability, agreement to perform a Supplemental 

1 The amount of penalty that can be assessed under Section 325(c) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § ll045(c) was 
increased by the Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjusnnent Rule codified at 40 C.P.R. Part 19 to $27,500 per day, 
for violations occurring between January 30, 1997 and March 15,2004, and $32,500 per day for violations which 
occurred between March 15, 2004 and January 12, 2009, and up to $37,500 per day for violations which occurred 
after January 12, 2009. 
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Environmental Project ("SEP"), economic benefit or savings (if any) resulting from the 

violations, and other factors as justice may require, it is ORDERED that Respondent be assessed 

a civil penalty of Ten Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-Four Dollars and no cents 

($10,334). 

27. Respondent consents to the issuance of this Consent Agreement and consents for 

the purposes of settlement to the payment of the civil penalty cited in the foregoing paragraph 

and to the performance of a SEP as detailed below. 
• 

28. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this CAFO, the Respondent shall pay 

the assessed civil penalty by certified check, cashier's check, or wire transfer, made payable to 

"Treasurer, United States of America, EPA- Region 6". Payment shall be remitted in one of 

three (3) ways: regular U.S. Postal Service mail (including certified mail), overnight mail, or 

wire transfer. For regular U.S. Postal Service mail, U.S. Postal Service certified mail, or U.S. 

Postal Service express mail, the check(s) should be remitted to: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 

For overnight mail (non-U.S. Postal Service, e.g. Fed Ex), the check(s) should be remitted to: 

U.S. Bank 
Government Lock box 979077 US EPA Fines & Penalties 
1005 Convention Plaza 
SL-MO-C2-GL 
St. Louis, MO 6310 I 
Phone No. (314) 418-1028 

For wire transfer, the payment should be remitted to: 

Federal Reserve Bank ofNew York 
ABA = 021030004 
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Account= 68010727 
SWIFT address= FRNYUS33 
3 3 Liberty Street 
New Y ark, NY 10045 

Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 Environmental 
Protection Agency" 

PLEASE NOTE: Docket number EPCRA 06-2013-0507 shall be clearly typed on the 

check, or other method of payment, to ensure proper credit. If payment is made by check, 

the check shall also be accompanied by a transmittal letter and shall reference tbe Respondent's 

name and address, tbe case name, and docket number oftbe CAFO. If payment is made by wire 

transfer, tbe wire transfer instructions shall reference tbe Respondent's name and address, the 

case name, and docket number of the CAFO. The Respondent shall also send a simultaneous 

notice of such payment, including a copy oftbe check and transmittal letter, or wire transfer 

instructions to the following: 

Stan Lancaster 
EPCRA 313 Enforcement 
Taxies Section (6PD-T) 
U.S. EPA, Region 6 
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200 
Dallas, TX 75202-2733; 

Lorena Vaughn 
Regional Hearing Clerk (6RC-D) 
U.S. EPA, Region 6 
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200 
Dallas, TX 75202-2733 

The Respondent's adherence to this request will ensure proper credit is given when penalties are 

received by EPA and acknowledged in the Region. 
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29. The Respondent agrees not to claim or attempt to claim a federal income tax 

deduction or credit covering all or any part of the civil penalty paid to the United States 

Treasurer. 

30. If Respondent fails to submit payment within thirty (30) days of the effective date of 

this Order, Respondent may be subject to a civil action pursuant to Section 325(f) ofEPCRA, 

42 U.S.C. § 11045(f), to collect any unpaid portion of the assessed penalty, together with 

interest, handling charges and nonpayment penalties as set forth below. 

31. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, unless otherwise prohibited by 

law, EPA will assess interest and late payment penalties on outstanding debts owed to the United 

States and a charge to cover the costs of processing and handling a delinquent claim. Interest on 

the civil penalty assessed in this CAFO will begin to accrue thirty (30) days after the effective 

date of the CAFO and will be recovered by EPA on any amount of the civil penalty that is not 

paid by the respective due date. Interest will be assessed at the rate of the United States Treasury 

tax and loan rate in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(a). Moreover, the costs of the Agency's 

administrative handling of overdue debts will be charged and assessed monthly throughout the 

period the debt is overdue. See 40 C.F .R. § 13.11 (b). 

32. EPA will also assess a $15.00 administrative handling charge for administrative costs 

on unpaid penalties for the first thirty (30) day period after the payment is due and an additional 

$15.00 for each subsequent thirty (30) day period that the penalty remains unpaid. In addition, a 

penalty charge of up to six percent per year will be assessed monthly on any portion of the debt 

which remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days. See 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(c). Should a 

penalty charge on the debt be required, it shall accrue from the first day payment is delinquent. 

See 31 C.F .R. § 90 I. 9( d). Other penalties for failure to make a payment may also apply. 
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33. Description ofSEP 

a. Respondent shall complete the following SEP which the parties agree is intended 

to secure significant environmental or public health protection and improvements; or 

implement or improve emergency planning and preparedness. Not more than thirty (30) 

days from the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent begin construction of the 

pollution reduction system at this facility as described in the SEP Scope of Work 

("SEPSOW"). The system will include ducting and filter media that will reduce the 

amount of particulate matter emitted from this facility by an estimated 47.45 tons per 

year. 

b. Respondent shall perform the SEP activities in accordance with the terms and 

schedule of the SEPSOW specified in Attachment I, and incorporated herein by 

reference. 

34. Cost of the SEP. The total expenditure for the SEP shall be no less than $31,004 

to purchase and install the ducting and filter system as described in the attached SEPSOW. 

Respondent shall include documentation of the expenditures made in connection with the SEP as 

part of the SEP Completion Report. 

35. Respondent hereby certifies that, as the date of the Consent Agreement, 

Respondent is not required to perform or develop the SEP by any federal, state or local law or 

regulation; nor is Respondent required to perform or develop the SEP by any other agreement, 

grant or as injunctive relief in this or any other case. Respondent further certifies that it has not 

received, and is not presently negotiating to receive credit in any other enforcement action for 

this SEP. 
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36. SEP Reports 

a. Respondent shall submit a final SEP Completion Report to EPA within 2 weeks 

of the completion of this project. The SEP Completion Report shall contain the 

following information: 

(i) A detailed description of the SEP as implemented; 

(ii) A description of any operating or logistical problems encountered and the 

solutions thereto; 

(iii) Itemized final costs with copies of receipts for all expenditures; 

(iv) Certification that the SEP has been fully implemented pursuant to the 

provisions of this CAFO (see Statement of Work, Attachment I, 

Certification Statement under item C, SEPSOW Completion Report); and 

(v) A description of the environmental, emergency preparedness, and/or 

public health benefits resulting from implementation of this SEP. 

b. Respondent agrees that failure to submit the final SEP Completion Report or any 

Periodic Report required by subsections listed above shall be deemed a violation of this 

CAFO and Respondent shall become liable for stipulated penalties pursuant to 

Paragraph 39. 

c. Respondent shall submit all notices and reports required by this CAFO to Stan 

Lancaster (6PDT), U.S. EPA Region 6, 1445 Ross Avenue, Dallas, TX 75202-2733, by 

first class mail. 

d. In itemizing its costs in the SEP Completion Report, Respondent shall clearly 

identifY and provide acceptable documentation for all eligible SEP costs. Where the SEP 

Completion Report includes costs not eligible for SEP credit, those costs must be clearly 

10 
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identified as such. For purposes of this Paragraph, "acceptable documentation" includes 

invoices, purchase orders, or other documentation that specifically identifies and itemizes 

the individual costs of the goods and/or services for which payment is being made. 

Canceled drafts do not constitute acceptable documentation unless such drafts 

specifically identify and itemize the individual costs of the goods and/or services for 

which payment is being made. 

· 37. Respondent shall maintain legible copies of documentation of the underlying 

research and data for any and all documents or reports submitted to EPA pursuant to this Consent 

Agreement and shall provide the documentation of any such underlying research and data to 

EPA not more than seven days after a request for such information. In all documents or reports, 

including, without limitation, any SEP reports, submitted to EPA pursuant to this Consent 

Agreement, Respondent shall, by its officers, sign and certify under penalty of law that the 

information contained in such document or report is true, accurate, and not misleading by signing 

the following statement: 

I certify under penalty of law that I have examined and am familiar with the 
information submitted in this document and all attachments and that, based on my 
inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the 
information, I believe that the information is true, accurate, and complete. I am 
aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, 
including the possibility of fines and imprisomnent. 

11 
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38. EPA's acceptance ofSEP Report. 

a. After receipt of the SEP Completion Report described in paragraph 36 a above, 

EPA will notifY the Respondent, in writing, regarding: i) any deficiencies in the SEP 

Report itself along with a grant of an additional thirty (30) days for Respondent to correct 

any deficiencies; or (ii) indicate that EPA concludes that the project has been completed 

satisfactorily or (iii) determine that the project has not been completed satisfactorily and 

seek stipulated penalties in accordance with paragraph 39 herein. 

b. If EPA elects to exercise option (i) above, i.e., if the SEP Report is determined to 

be deficient but EPA has not yet made a final determination about the adequacy of SEP 

completion itself, EPA shall permit Respondent the opportunity to object in writing to 

the notification of deficiency given pursuant to this paragraph within ten (I 0) days of 

receipt of such notification. EPA and Respondent shall have an additional thirty (30) 

days from the receipt by EPA of the notification of objection to reach agreement on 

changes necessary to the SEP Report. If agreement cannot be reached on any such issue 

within this thirty (30) day period, EPA shall provide a written statement of its decision on 

adequacy of the completion of the SEP to Respondent, which decision shall be final and 

binding upon Respondent. Respondent agrees to comply with any requirements imposed 

by EPA as a result of any failure to comply with the terms of this CAFO. In the event the 

SEP is not completed as contemplated herein, as determined by EPA, stipulated penalties 

shall be due and payable by Respondent to EPA in accordance with paragraph 39 herein. 
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39. Stipulated Penalties for Failure to Complete SEP/Failure to spend agreed-on 

amount. 

a. In the event that Respondent fails to comply with any of the terms or provisions 

of this Agreement relating to the performance of the SEP described in paragraph 33 

above and/or to the extent that the actual expenditures for the SEP do not equal or exceed 

the cost of the SEP described in paragraph 34 above, Respondent shall be liable for 

stipulated penalties according to the provisions set forth below: 

(i) Except as provided in subparagraph (ii) immediately below, for a 

SEP which has not been completed satisfactorily pursuant to this 

Consent Agreement and Order, Respondent shall pay a stipulated 

penalty to the United States in the amount of$31,004 (75% of the 

dollar for dollar mitigated penalty of $41,338). 

(ii) Ifthe SEP is not completed in accordance with paragraphs 33 - 38, 

but the Complainant determines that the Respondent: a) made 

good faith and timely efforts to complete the project; and b) 

certifies, with supporting documentation, that at least 90 percent of 

the amount of money which was required to be spent was 

expended on the SEP, Respondent shall not be liable tor any 

stipulated penalty. 

(iii) If the SEP is completed in accordance with paragraphs 33 - 38, but 

the Respondent spent less than 90 percent of the amount of money 

required to be spent for the project, Respondent shall pay a 
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stipulated penalty to the United States in the amount of $4,134 

(10% of the dollar for dollar mitigated penalty of$41,338). 

(iv) If the SEP is completed in accordance with paragraphs 33-38, and 

the Respondent spent at least 90 percent of the amount of money 

required to be spent for the project, Respondent shall not be liable 

for any stipulated penalty. 

(v) For failure to submit the SEP Completion Report required by 

paragraph 36(a) above, Respondent shall pay a stipulated penalty 

in the amount of $332 for each day after the report was originally 

due, until the report is submitted. 

b. The determinations of whether the SEP has been satisfactorily completed and 

whether the Respondent has made a good faith, timely effort to implement the SEP shall 

be in the sole discretion of EPA. 

c. Stipulated penalties for subparagraph (v) above shall begin to accrue on the day 

after performance is due, and shall continue to accrue through the final day of the 

completion of the activity. 

d. Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties not more than fifteen (15) days after 

receipt of written demand by EPA for such penalties. Method of payment shall be in 

accordance with the provisions of paragraph 28 above. Interest and late charges shall be 

paid as stated in paragraph 30- 32 herein. 

e. Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as prohibiting, altering or in any way 

limiting the ability of EPA to seek any other remedies or sanctions available by virtue of 
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Respondent's violation of this agreement or of the statutes and regulations upon which 

this agreement is based, or for Respondent's violation of any applicable provision of law. 

34. Any public statement, oral or written, in print, film, or other media, made by 

Respondent making reference to the SEP shall include the following language, "This project was 

undertaken in connection with the settlement of an enforcement action taken by the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency for violations of Section 313 of EPCRA." 

40. This Consent Agreement and Order shall not relieve Respondent of its obligation 

to comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state or local law, nor shall it be construed to 

be a ruling on, or determination of, any issue related to any federal, state or local permit, nor 

shall it be construed to constitute EPA approval of the equipment or technology installed by 

Respondent in connection with the SEP undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. 

41. This document is a "Final Order" as that term is defined in the "Enforcement 

Response Policy for Section 313 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act 

(1986) and Section 6607 of the Pollution Prevention Act (1990)," dated August 10, 1992; 

Amended, April21, 2001; for the purpose of demonstrating a history of"prior such violations". 

B. RETENTION OF ENFORCEMENT RIGHTS 

42. The EPA does not waive any rights or remedies available to EPA for any other 

violations by the Respondent of Federal or State laws, regulations, or permitting conditions. 

43. Nothing in this CAFO shall relieve the Respondent of the duty to comply with all 

applicable provisions of Section 313 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. Part 372. 
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44. Except as specifically provided in this CAFO, nothing herein shall limit the power 

and authority of EPA or the United States to take, direct, or order all actions to protect public 

health, welfare, or the environment, or prevent, abate or minimize an actual or threatened release 

of hazardous substances, pollutants, contaminants, hazardous substances on, at or from the 

Respondent's fucility. Furthermore, nothing in this CAFO shall be construed to prevent or limit 

EPA's civil and criminal authorities, or that of other Federal, State, or local agencies or 

departments to obtain penalties or injunctive relief under other Federal, State, or local laws or 

regulations. 

C. COSTS 

45. Each party shall bear its own costs and attorney's fees. Furthermore, the Respondent 

specifically waives its right to seek reimbursement of its costs and attorney's fees under 

5 U.S.C. § 504 and 40 C.F.R. Part 17. 

D. COMPLIANCE 

46. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this CAFO, the Respondent shall have 

submitted the following Form R to EPA and to the State of Texas for Reporting Year 2007: 

Chromium compounds, lead compounds, methanol, toluene and xylene. 

47. The Respondent shall submit the Form Rs, required by Paragraph 46, electronically 

through EPA's Central Data Exchange (COX), utilizing the Toxic Release Inventory Program's 

TRl-MEweb software. Because the State of Texas is part ofEPA's State Data Exchange (SOX), 

it is not necessary to submit a separate copy to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
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(TCEQ). After the transmitted copy to EPA is certified, a copy will be automatically forwarded 

to the TCEQ. 

48. The Respondent shall also email certification to Stan Lancaster at the address below 

that the necessary forms in Paragraph 46 have been transmitted to the EPA reporting center: 

Stan Lancaster 
EPCRA 313 Enforcement 
U.S. EPA Region 6 
lancaster.stan@epa.gov 

17 



In the Matter of Ennis Paint, Inc. (North Plant) Docket No. EPCRA 06-2013-0507 

THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES CONSENT TO THE ENTRY OF THIS CONSENT 
AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER: 

FOR THE RESPONDENT: 

FOR THE COMPLAINANT: 

Date: .}/27//J 

~~~ M~ 
Environmental Health and Safety Manager 
Ennis Paint, Inc. 
115 Todd Court 
Thomasville, NC 27360 

~ Acting Director 
Multimedia Planning and 

Permitting Division 
U.S. EPA Region 6 
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V. FINAL ORDER 

Pursuant to Section 325(c) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), and the Consolidated Rules 

of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, the 

foregoing Consent Agreement is hereby ratified. This Final Order shall not in any case affect the 

right of EPA or the United States to pursue appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or 

criminal sanctions for any violations of law. This Final Order shall resolve only those causes of 

action alleged in the Consent Agreement. Nothing in this Final Order shall be construed to 

waive, extinguish or otherwise affect Respondent's (or its officers, agents, servants, employees, 

successors, or assigns) obligation to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes 

and regulations, including the regulations that were the subject of this action. The Respondent is 

ordered to comply with the terms of settlement and the civil penalty payment instructions as set 

forth in the Consent Agreement. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.3l(b), this Final Order shall 

become effective upon filing with the RegionallJIOOl'ffiB~C2Jlerk. 

Dated 3~ ;1[-/3 
Patrick Rankin 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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In the Matter of Ennis Paint, Inc. (North Plant) Docket No. EPCRA 06-2013-0507 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on the :J- 1- day of tfrt~C?fk , 2013, the original and one 

copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) was hand delivered to the 

Regional Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA- Region 6, 1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200, Dallas, Texas 

75202-2733, and a true and correct copy of the CAFO was delivered to the following 

individual(s) by the method indicated below: 

CERTIFIED MAIL - RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED # 7011 3500 0000 0360 3254 

Martha Brown, 
Environmental Health and Safety Manager 
Ennis Paint, Inc. 
115 Todd Court 
Thomasville, NC 27360 

Via Email (PDF): 

Cynthia J. Bishop 
Environmental Attorney 
Dallas, Texas 
cbishop@cbishoplaw.com 

,/ 
L ..... /· 

);at( Lancaster 
EPCRA 313 Enforcement 
U.S. EPA Region 6 
Dallas, TX 75202 
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Attachment l 

Supplemental Environmental Project Scope of Work 

(SEPSOW) 

Ennis Paint, Inc. ("Respondent") has designated Cynthia J. Bishop, counsel for 
Respondent, as its Project Manager to oversee the implementation of the SEPSOW, to be 
responsible for providing reports to EPA and to be the primary contact for all other 
communications to and from EPA in connection with the SEP. Respondent has agreed to provide 
funds in the amount of no less than $31,004 for the performance of the SEP activities described 
below. The SEP is being implemented at the Ennis Paint South Plant located at 1509 South 
Kaufman Street. The South Plant is locate approximately 3 miles south of the North Plant which 
is where the violations contained in this CAFO occurred. Cost estimates to perform the agreed 
upon SEP activities are included in this SEPSOW. Actual costs to perform the SEP activities 
described herein may differ from estimated costs. Should that occur, the fund allocation to the SEP 
activities will be adjusted accordingly to ensure a total expenditure of$31,004 for the agreed upon 
SEP activities, is expended. 

A. SEPSOW Description 

Respondent shall perform the following SEP activities to implement the SEPSOW: 

I. Replace the filters on the dust collectors at the Ennis Paint, Texas South Plant. The new 
filters shall comply with the specifications in Attachment 1.1. 

2. Replace the duct work on the dust collectors at the Texas South Plant. The new duct work 
shall comply with the specifications in Attachment 1.2. 

B. SEP Implementation Plan 

Respondent will complete the SEPSOW within ninety (90) days after the effective date of 
this CAFO. 

C. SEPSOW Completion Report 

Upon completion of the SEP, a final SEPSOW Completion Report shall be submitted by 
Respondent to EPA within sixty (60) days after completion of all SEP activities. The SEPSOW 
Completion Report shall contain the following information: 

I. A detailed description of the SEP activities as implemented; 

2. A description of any problems encountered and solutions thereto; 



3. Itemized costs, documented by copies of the purchase lists, purchase orders 
and receipts, or canceled checks; 

4. A description of the environmental and public health benefits resulting from 
implementation of the SEP activities (with a quantification of the benefits and 
pollutant reductions, if feasible). 

5. A certification that the SEPSOW has been fully implemented pursuant to 
the provisions of this CAFO, and; 

6. A certification by Respondent's representative who is fully authorized to 
legally commit and bind Respondent, sign and certify under penalty of law that to 
the best of Respondent's knowledge the information contained in such document or 
report is true, accurate, and not misleading by signing the following statement: 

I certify under penalty of law that I have examined and am familiar 
with the information submitted in this document and all attachments 
and that based on my inquiry of those individuals immediately 
responsible for obtaining the information, and to the best of my 
knowledge, I believe the information is true, accurate, and 
complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for 
submitting false information, including the possibility of fines and 
imprisonment. 

[name of responsible party) 
[title/position) 
[name of company] 
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Attachment 1.1 

Filter Specifications 

Supplemental Environmental Project Scope of Work 



Attachment 1.1 

Filter Specifications 

Supplemental Environmental Project Scope of Work 
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Duct Work Specifications 

Supplemental Environmental Project Scope of Work 



~.I'J.t-HS •. P~II'JT•·.INC';. 
REQUEST FOR PURCHASE 

Assigned Project!/ I ? '} · C 0.--· l(to be fllfo<l I» aftecaproroval) 

Estimated Cunllllatlve Cost Of Asset 83,088.851 

Name Of Requested Asset for Purchase 

1) Dust collection overhaul 

Description of Asset 

[_T:..:..;.;xs;:_____.l 
Asset I =~ 
Soria! No. 1..--------------' 

Location 

1) Reroute all duct collection lines with new duct and hoods. 2) Move dust collector to more officiant location. 

Explain Why Asset is Neecied 
1) Reduction of dust particals released into the air. 2) Move dust collector to achive maximum air flow. 3) Introduction of 
dust collection system into areas that are not equiped with them at the present time. 

Rick Salinas December 21 2012 
Name Of Requester Date of Request 

Bill Floor December21, 2012 

Name Of Approver Date of Approval 

Comments From Finance Department 

CFO Date 

coo Date of Approval 



12/18/2012 14:36 FAX 9129232517 The Hay COOlj)OI\Y I4J 002/003 
--- -- -- ~-- ---­·-·-· 

423 8. College Street Waxahachie, Texno 76165 
P.O. Box 606 Wuxuhachle, Thxas 751 08·0605 

General Contractor(' for lndiistrlal and Commercial Construction 

Phone 972/937·1652 9721 930·8682 Fax 972 I 923·2517 

dnuy@then~ycompuny.com 

DECEMBER 18, 2012 QUOTATION NO. 201328 

ENNIS PAINT 
ENNIS, TX 75119 

ATTENTION: MR. RICK SAUNAS 

DUST COLLECTION SYSTEM 

1] R~MOVAL: 

A. OLD DUCTWORK FOR C:OUR (4) 
SERVICE LINES 

B. OLD DUST COLLECTION HOODS 

. . ............ .. ... .... ...... 2} . ... ... iNstALi.Aflbi\ii 

A. DUCT WORK FOR FOUR (4} 
SERVIC:~ LINES 

B, DUST COLLECTION HOODS 

3] TNE NAY COMPANYTO SUPPLY ALL BRACKETS, 
HANGERS, AND MISCELLANEOUS METALS TO 
COMPLETE THE PROJECT 

4] THE NAY COMPANYTO SUPPLY SI<YTRACI< 
AND ALL EQUIPMENT AND TOOLS NEEDED 
FOR REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION OF DUSI 
COLL~CTION SYSTEM 

1 



12/IB/2012 14:38 FAX 9728232517 Tho 1/ay Go"'pany @ 003/003 

423 S. College Sirool Wuxahachlo, Texas 76106 
P.O. Box 605 Waxahachie, Texas 76160·0605 

Gonorul Contractors tor Industrial nnd Cornmerclel Construotlon 

Phone 972/937 .. 1652 972/938·8682 Fax 972/923·2517 

dnay®tl1enaycompony.oom 

DECEMBER 18, 2012 QUOTATION NO. 201328 

5) GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 

6] BUILDER'S RISK INSURANCE 

7] SUPERVISION 

PROJECT PROPOSAL $52.000.00 
(TAX NOT INClUDeD) 

SUBMITTED BY: ACCf.PTED BY: :rAY coM~~ 
OOIJG:;,f 

ENNIS PAINT 

RICK SALINAS 

?. 
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pP<ciol 
St , S' ~· S<lgg-'"-fHmTr.:r.. 

6245 Creek Rd. Clndnnati, 
OH 45242 FAX: ~1-800.. 

944-2156 

Call Toll Free 1-ll66-56Z-3S2S 

1750 S. 350 East F9; 2-B 
C!ea:field, UT 84D~ 1 
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I TQ=.I J$ 7.~1 



ffi:~21!12~~J 
Terms Net 30 days I TOTACBIWNGI . . ,. 

E:W'"'*""bh'lt .... $ 7,6~.J!$ Q.""'-'>:>!1-t~«<< ~m-aao~z 

"Thl$ quo:e is good for 2i c.eys.. Please co.1~":.-:-:J ;:>r:Ci:-11< J::cfo:e ot'de:'i.ng. Vo~:iiily in ti1e metal mar'.<:ets and the inctc.zs:n~ ~rice and derT'.<.liid for s:;rap, tl'lt:> 
prices qt:01:ed are .wbjec::: <o ~1ge. A surc.'1or;:;e ~y h~>~ve been (;\dc.e.d to offset the .addifcna! cost o~ meb!Prielng ir1dOd!:1o ~~w d~CQtil'l:i'\0 pridno is 

o~f,.rr=•d !mf&:S U?ON PA YMEl\.'T WlTH!N TERM$: ZC DAYS UNLESS OTH§:RV\'§5 ARRANGED l=at!ure~o :prv w.'!hir: teff'l"§ rt-.aybf::su:,ject~ 'fm~ncinc 
cl'<.3roe~ or cl'laMes in The discount 

~AlL PRICES ARE OFFERED BASED UPON THEAGREEhlENT TO PAY WITHIN TERMS. lt'NO!CES NOT PAID WITHIN TERMS I.NilL BE A$¢ESS 
j1.5% PER MONTH. YOUR SIGNATURE BELOW SIGN!FIESTHATYOU HAVE t.OOKED OVeR. TiiEQU'OTEANOAUTHOR!ZETHESHIPMEN"fOF 
IPAATS USTEO AND THE PRESCRIBED TERMS. 

Siana.ture: """" 



OA,';'=· 

'1~~:/,~ 
CCII.":'AC':-

1-'-0~.::.SS 
i 
iC.'TY 

'721C~12 

E..r...tNIS TRA..eF!c 
R:iek $.::11~ 

'tSO$ So:::.~-: ~t:f~.-::;!': s-::: 
Er::"Jl:: 

?7:.>5 w. :,{3.-'k;e: S:. 
Greensto.o. NC Z740S 
'FAX.:~~CtZ 

52-'5 C•eek Rd. Clncinnzti. 
OH 45242 FAX: -'i-300-

9<4-2156 

'tiSC S. SSC ~ FS, 2..S 
Clea~lc!. ur 34:0'1 1 
FJ.Y..:. ~-8C't-i'2a.s53-! 

Cail Toii Free 1-366-562-3828 

""""" s:-n?iO: 
C'JSTOMC:R: 
CCI\7ACT 

A::CR.:;SS 

,c:;y 

E:"lr.is T~e 120!>2012 Y Mixe-:-

----fl~: ,..._ ::;-:o:C7519 STA1.: --··----··· tr-': 

?)<;Q~ 3CWZ01-$~13 

'"' c.v....:c. ~;,.,~~c.<:~ 

$.~? ~i.J-:::T:ONS:: 

0 

!s:-n?::JA72 

\s..:.t..ESPERSO~ Hcidi Co~ 

NO><:!;: 

Y-M!XER 

\»?LJCA7t0N: Dt!S! 



~--__ ::;Ccii--____ i; ;"~l 

·s;,-.;;;;-~l"$.'i:1~C":2 yi;.<,C(~ 

O.oe>!:1>o«Rir<I-A'd ~1n~:;: I TOTAL BiLUNG r - · -~ 
- bd..ldnafi'Cl:lhl s 7,496.60 ! 

7et:':"ls Net SO days 

--:--_,;, -~:;c:-:, :~ ;::.:::-::: :·::: '2~ :::"~·:. ?:'::<!~~ -:;:.::'",~~ .:-"=:=.i:::;; .=<t:~-=~~ ~-='=~'r:;. '·.1::-:z~!i:y ::-. ::-:~ :":"!~:::::: ~..:;:::t:;;:s ;:~::: :~.:;: ::::::-~~::-.s; :::-::::: ;;.~:. -:::-:::7-Z:-.:: f~:- ::;;,;.o.e.;.;, ~··= 
:-:::.:::> ::::.:-::-:.-::: .::·0: ~~::::,;,=: :: :::.:..-.:;;.:: .. .:.. s:.::::.--z:;-:: "':'.2-'f :·.2ve ~,;,:: ::::::::-:::: ::. o::s::: ~!'::;, z.:-:::i:;::-.-:2! ::cs: ~~ r-:-:::z::?-:6:":': :::::ix!:-:-:: a:-:v ::''~--:;::.."':".:;:: :::~:~::-::: :s 

-::'"·.,_ •. . : ":·<:~~ :.; ::.:;~; :::., v:.:-::\:"":" '/.':-;"'-0;': -,R:-:~S- ::::: :::..:.. YS 'J:(:.,::ss o-:r-;::R~·.~s:: ..:.?.::<:...;~~G::D- ;;;:··:t:~;; :o ::~·• ~..r.~c,-:-: ~'"<- __ ,_,.,.,:;;"~ ~.:.;:::::>!:o::: :o •:.-:2. __ ::-:-:: 
:.~.;:,rc'.!s c~ .:!'::;,~.-:~ :r. ::"''=' ::::"-"::~;,::":: 

I 
IALL P?JCES ,;..qc OFFERED SA.S'2.D U?ON THEAGR=cl<l:ENTTO PAY Vv'iT:'"llN TE.~S. INVOICES NOT ?AID Vo.I!THIN TERU.S'MLL SEASSESS 
i.S% ?SRMONTH. YCUR SIGNATURE SaOW StGNIFlESTr.ATYOU HAVE LOOKEO OVER THE: QUOTE A:-.'OAUTHORIZE THE. SHIPMENT OF" 
?AitiS L!Si'ED AND T:-!E ?~CR!SED TE'R.~S. 

Sio~:uro: 03-te: 

~~~----------



0A";"2 

I""~"' 
~.;s-:o.-.:SR: 

CCt:"-AC7 

AC":lRESS 

121031"i2: 

ENN!S i'R.A-:;F!C 
R.ici<: &!:lb<:s 

1509 So!:t.~ K<::ufm~:-~ S~ 
C:i'Y <::.:-:!':.!$ 

3735 w_ Ma:k~ s-.. 
Gree.'l~ro. NC 27~C'9 

r::;.;x; "--S3S-Ssg...cc.!S 

s-:-;.":"::: 7X :::?: C7519 

1:::-.1'0 SCC-S31~11S \ 

I . I 
S\U..:L =t!f!~~c.Co::-t i 

l.s:-!i~ ~'-s;:RWC7JC:>.'S: 

I
SKt:>::IA~ 

s,.:.~~J;:S...."'::l: He!& Cole 

624:5 Creei<: Rd. Cir:ein::ati. 
OH45242 FAX>i...SOc-

944-2156 

~750 $. SSC Ea~ FS, 2-E 
C!earfre!d, UT ~o~-; 
FAX: 1-8C1-72S-8s;..:. 

Call Toll Free 1-866-562-3823 

-1"""" Sl-!t?TO: 

'~· STOMB"t 
CON":'AC-r 

"'::lRESS 

b: .. 
:-.:o~ 

\A??UCA.TION: 

-Ef.:tnis T:':l'ffic 120S12 HC Ci.!I_iN 

"' 

CUT IN SYSTE!\1. 

DL"' 



'""" IO 

L-:ne T~.e 120312 HC CUT ( 

Ter:":'lS Net 30 days 
C<.'Oto- !;hool~..OO:: ~·.J1sr.:=-::! I TOTALSILuNG I 

~cl:otnc~ s 
--~-'~ :,.;:.:~ :s ;:z-:: ~~~ 2~ :::::-'<~ :=-:?::;:;.2 ::..-::'"""':" ::::~-::; :..;c::.-::: ;:--:-;,:-::-:-;. v-::z:::::: ::- :":,:; ~::;:: ~~;:::: :.:-:: :,":=:: :.-:=~::-:; ::-,:-: ~!'!~ =~:':".<:.-.: '¢: s:::.::.. ·.-::-

~~~~~ ~~~~L~~:'~~=;~~~~; =~~}-~: :~~~~~;~~;~ ~~:-~~~;~ ~~:-~-;~;~;-~;~~~:~i :~;~~-;~~=~;~::~:~:.::~~~:;~~~~=-':-~ ~:~~~~~~~:?_:.~~-~~~-:= 
~-'" -~" ¢~ ~~:'! ... -

' !A.! ! ?RICES ARE OFFERED BASED UPON THE AGRE9.1B.'TTO PAY l/'J!TH!N TER?ViS. tNVQICES NOT PAJD WITHJN I:RMS W.LL BE ASSESS 
f-; 5o/, ?SR MO~'TH. YOUR SIGNA'TURE BELOW SIGNIFIES THAi YOU HAVE. LOOKED OV""dt iHE QUOTEANDAUTHORIZE 7HE SH!?MENT 0!=' 
j?ARTS UST""=:D .A.'IID THE ?R~ i'ERMS. 

I S!CM:Ure: D:rte-: 

~.101 

I 

.s.o57.1o I 



1&{1 
--= 

~;..TE; 

~5f,L 70o 

~~USTOMER: 
\CQti .. 'TAC7 

j.A.OC?.SSS 

"i2f03/12 

ENNIS TRAFF!C 
R:ck Satinz.s 

0735 W. MarKet St 
Greensboro, NC 27409 

FAX:: 1-33$.6$3-0043 

6245 Creek Rd. 
OH45242 

CL'1clnnati, 
FAX: -1-800-

944-2156 

1750 S. 350 East. FS, 2-E 
C!ear.ie!C, UT S401 i 
FAX:. "'i-80i-72M534 

Cali Toll Free 1-866-562-3828 
Quote# 

Sh1?TC: 
CUSTOMER: 
CONTACT 
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Ennis traffic 120312 TEC I 
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ALL PRtCES ARE OFFERED BASED U?ON THE AGREEMENT TO PAY'MTHIN TERMS. !NYO!CES NOT PAlD Vv'ITHlN TERMS WilL SE ASSESS 1.5% 
?ER MONTri. YOUR SIGNATURE BELOW SIGNIFIES THAT YOU HAVE LOOKED·OVER THE QUOTE AND AUTHORIZE THE Sl"ii?MENT OF ?ARTS 
USTED AND THE PRESCR!SED TER.I\15. 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Christian, 

Bill Floor 
Friday, December 21, 2012 8:50AM 
Christian McCoy 
Rick Salinas 
RFP TXS - Dust Collector Overhaul 
Dust Collector Proposal. pdf; RFP Dust Collector Overhaul. xis 

Please sec the attached approved llFP for a dust collection system in TXS. This will be invoiced 2012. Please provide 
projectll/coding detail to Rick and me'. 

Thank you, 

Bill Floor 

Manufacturing Director (USA, Canada) 
Ennis-Flint 
1855 Plymouth Road N.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30318 
770-361-0044 Cell 
800-331-8118, ext. 4149 Office 
bfloor@ennistraffic.com 
www.ennistraffic.com 

If it makes Cent$, then DO IT Ill 
S.T.O.P. and think- !iafety Ihroughout Qur J:lant 
S.T.E.P. because- !iafety Iakes gvery £erson 
A.B. C. because safety is as simple as- 81ways Qe .(;areful 
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Completed • , Date Service Total Cost ---


